
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
                                                                                                                                                  
                                            

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, January 27, 2015 
Benton County Planning Annex 

1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser, WA 
 
Benton County Commissioner Board Meetings have temporarily moved to the above address pending construction at the Courthouse 
until approximately March 1, 2015.  We apologize for the inconvenience. 
 
             9:00 AM Call to Order  
   Approval of Minutes 

 January 13, 2015 
 
   Review Agenda 

 
Consent Agenda  

     
Clerk 
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106 
b. Lease Agreement w/APS Mailing Systems for Mailing Services   
Commissioners 
c. Approval of Benton County Tax Levy for 2015 
d. Amending Resolution 2014-113 Regarding 2013-2014 County Budgets 
e. Canvassing Board Appointment 
f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 137  
g. Authority for County Administrator to Deny and Settle Claims; Rescinding Res 2012-327  
Coroner 
h. Purchase Authorization of 2015 Dodge Cargo Van from Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge 
Facilities 
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110   
j. Contract w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. for HVAC Maintenance Services   
Human Services 
k. Contract w/Dept of Social & Health Services, Division of Behavioral Health & Recovery    
l. Contract w/City of Kennewick for Crisis Intervention Training 
m. Contract w/Domestic Violence Services for Ten-Year Homeless Housing Plan 
Information Technologies 
n. Purchase Authorization of Solarwinds Orion Monitor & Software from Cerium Networks  
o. Purchase Authorization of Two Yr Software Subscription Renewal w/DLS Solutions 
Juvenile 
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 
q. Contract w/City of Kennewick for Graffiti Abatement Program 
r. Contract w/City of Benton City for Graffiti Abatement Program 
s. Amended Contract w/State of WA, Department of Social & Health Services for Selective 

Aggressive Probation 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 
January 27, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

t. Awarding Dyron Murphy Architects Contract for Admin Building Assessments 
u.   Awarding Western States CAT Contract for Engine & Generator Maintenance & Repair 
Office of Public Defense 
v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136  
w. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/B Riley  
x. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/E Riley  
y. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/B Pang  
z. Amended District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Mendoza 
aa. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/D McKinley 
bb. District Court Public Defense Agreement w/L Mapes 
cc. District Court Public Defense Mentoring & Supervision Contract w/M Trombley 
dd. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/J Porteous  
ee. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/J Griffin  
ff. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/M Torres 
gg. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/M Almquist  
hh. Superior Court Public Defense Services Contract w/P McBurney 
ii. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Services Contract w/M Alexander  
jj. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Services Contract w/S Ajax  
kk. Amended Juvenile Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Trombley 
ll. Terminating District Court Public Defense Contract w/J Briggs  
mm Public Defense Contract w/D Stovern for Failure to Pay Legal Financial Obligation Matters 
nn.  Public Defense Contract w/S Henwood for Failure to Pay Legal Financial Obligation Matters 

   Parks 
oo.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Department 000   
Personnel 
pp.  Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 
qq.  Payment Authorization to B Strote Counseling & EAP for Training Services 
Protective Inspection  
rr.    Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000  
Public Works 
ss.   Bid Authorization for Purchase of Surfacing Materials-Hot Mix Asphalt 
tt.    Digital Submittal Certification of 2015 Road Levy Certification & Estimated Revenue 
uu.   Purchase Authorization from Kuker-Ranken, Inc of Leica Total Station – Survey Equipment 
Sheriff 
vv.   Salary Request Statement    
ww.  Purchase Authorization from ProForce Law Enforcement for Weapons & Tasers 
xx.   Contract w/ LexisNexis for Law Library 
yy.   Agreement w/ City of Kennewick for Use of Kennewick Firearms Range Facility 
zz.   Ammunition Purchase Authorization from San Diego Police Equipment Company 
aaa  Notice of Withdrawal from Interlocal Agreement Regarding Cellebrite USA Software  
Superior Court 
bbb  Superior Court Interpreter Services Agreement w/A Armijo 
 
Scheduled Business 
 
Grant Agreement w/Benton County Emergency Management ~ T Antonson 
 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 
January 27, 2015 
Page 3 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

Authorization to Purchase Equipment/Software from Snaptrends ~ T Antonson 
 
Request to Release Benton County 2060 Affordable Housing Funds ~ L Robb 
 
Benton County Shoreline Master Plan ~ Planning 
 
Public Safety Tax Update – Mental Health Coordinator Position ~ D Sparks & L Smith Kelty   
 
Criminal Justice Sales Tax Discussion ~ Commissioners 
 
Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business    
 
   Executive Session 
 
   4th Quarter Litigation Update ~ R Brown 
 
   Evaluation of the Qualifications of Applicant for Public Employment ~ S Hallstrom & D Ford 
 
   Union Negotiations Update ~ Commissioner Small 
 
   Quasi-Judicial Hearing re Rosalez Appeal ~ Commissioners 
          
 
 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, January 13, 2015, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small 
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Public 
Works Manager Daniel Ford; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk 
Josie Delvin; Bob Woody, IT Department; GIS Manager Mary Phillips; Assessor Bill Spencer; 
Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; Dan Mack and Matt Rassmussen, Public Works; Rosie Sparks 
and Taylor Ranger, Auditor’s Office.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of January 6, 2015 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “w”.  
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Animal 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
Auditor 

b. Amending Budget Policy & Procedures Per Resolution 11-793 
Commissioners 

c. Adopting Business Travel & Expense Policy Establishing Procedures & Guidelines; 
Rescinding Resolution 2014-209 

d. Appointment of K Christensen to the Benton County Mosquito Control Board  
e. Appointment of G Dorsett to the Benton County Mosquito Control Board   

Facilities 
f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 
g. Contract w/Moon Security Services, Inc. for Security Monitoring Services   

Fairgrounds 
h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 



 - 2 - 

Human Services 
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Depts. 504 & 560   
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Depts. 504 & 560  

Juvenile 
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 

Parks 
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126   

Personnel 
m. Agreement w/Public Safety Testing for Civil Service Testing   
n. Internal Policies for Non-Exempt Non-Bargaining Employees in Facilities & Parks Dept.  

Prosecuting Attorney 
o. Agreement w/American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, 

Representing Courthouse Employees 
p. Agreement w/Teamster’s Local 839, Representing Sheriff’s Office Clerical 

Public Works 
q. Purchase & Payment Authorization of Spreader Controls for Dump Trucks to Force 

America Distributing 
r. Interlocal Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District for Quarry Rock 

Sheriff 
s. Purchase of 12 Vehicles from Columbia Ford Nissan 

Superior Court 
t. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 

Sustainable Development   
u. Contract w/Prosser Economic Development Association for Economic Development  
v. Contract w/Benton City Economic Development Council for Economic Development 

Treasurer 
w. 2014 Personal Property Uncollectibles 

 
Administrative Policy & Procedure for Renaming County Roads 
 
Dan Ford presented a draft policy for renaming county roads.  He pointed out that it required all 
land owners on the road proposed to be renamed to be signatories on the petition.   
 
After review the Board agreed to have Mr. Ford move forward and adopt the policy.   
 
Final Plat of The Ridge at Reata West Phase 3 – SUB 2014-003 
 
Mike Shuttleworth presented the Final Plat for approval.  He said that all conditions of approval 
were satisfied and it was ready for the Board’s approval. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the Final Plat of the Ridge at Reata West, 
Phase 3, SUB 2014-003, as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the 
motion carried. 
 
 
 



 - 3 - 

Other Business 
 
Commissioner Small said he continued to work on the mental health court issue and that Mr. 
Sparks would be bringing forth a proposal.  Additionally, he commented that GCBH had just 
received one of its largest supplements ($44 million of additional funds came in).   
 
Commissioner Beaver encouraged everyone to go to the new Badger Mountain Trail on the south 
side of Badger Mountain.   
 
Chairman Delvin said he met with local law enforcement agencies to discuss the gang and crime 
prevention monies.  Additionally, he met with Darryl Banks at Juvenile and they would be 
forming a committee/working group to come up with an RFP.  He said he also met with David 
Sparks and Loretta Smith Kelty to talk about how they would go forward with that; might be 
starting in the summer and he would keep the Board apprised.  
 
Chairman Delvin said the Legislative trip was scheduled for Feb. 12 and 13 if the Board was 
interested.  Additionally, he received an invitation from a nurse at the Health District to attend 
the family prevention program on Jan. 22.  Commissioner Beaver said he would try to make it.   
 
Chairman Delvin discussed meetings in February and said he would be gone the week after the 
holiday (Presidents’ Day) to the NACO conference and asked if the Board wanted to hold the 
meeting the day after the holiday and cancel the week he was at NACO.  Commissioner Beaver 
said that was fine with him.  
 
Commissioner Beaver said he was being approached about the 3/10 criminal justice sales tax 
money and he suggested the Board have a workshop to prioritize the projects and have a timeline 
when the County would receive the funds.   
 
Commissioner Small specifically discussed the mental health court and said some folks thought 
it was going to start Jan. 2015 and he was trying to get liaisons out to address this and reach out 
and let people know what was happening.   
 
Mr. Sparks said he and Ms. Smith Kelty met with District Court and the PA regarding the mental 
health court and they would be presenting a resolution to authorize the mental health coordinator 
position and establish a budget.  Additionally, Ms. Smith Kelty had met with departments that 
were scheduled to receive money and asked them to prioritize their requests.  Mr. Sparks said he 
wanted to have a couple of months to see where they were at on sales tax and said he would feel 
more comfortable with a couple of months of collection to evaluate.   He said as long as this was 
a continuing working document, he didn’t have a problem with having the discussion.   
 
The Board agreed this was a good place to start and they wanted to make sure everything being 
requested could be funded so it would be successful and they didn’t want to just spend all the 
money.   
 
Commissioner Small said he wanted to consider hiring a consultant so they didn’t reinvent the 
wheel; additionally, he was looking at funding options through GCBH that might work.   



 - 4 - 

 
Commissioner Beaver said he believed that was in the job scope of the mental health 
coordinator; additionally, he suggested the County visit Spokane and look at their mental health 
court since they had a successful program.   
 
Mr. Sparks said the departments were coming up with more accurate numbers and they were 
looking at possibly cash flowing out the programs for 10 years to see if what they were doing 
would fit the long term.  He said with his projections they might have difficulty sustaining the 
programs and he doubted the growth in sales tax would keep up with the growth in cost.   
 
The Board agreed to continue the discussion until the next board meeting.   
 
Claim for Damages 
 
CC 2015-01: Received January 15, 2015 from Diane Debevec 
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 01/05/2015 
 
Warrant #: 238041-238136 
Direct Deposit #: 100478-101072 
Total all funds: $2,189,163.11 
 
Warrant #: 114659-114670 
Taxes #: 10115011-101150114 
Total all funds: $2,136,535.44 
 
Check Date:  01/09/2015 
 
Warrant #: 114773-114785 
Total all funds: $33,536.00 
 
Procurement Cards #: 0115 
Total all funds:  $262,651.71 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2015-039: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 
2015-040: Amending Budget Policy & Procedures Per Resolution 11-793 
2015-041: Adopting Business Travel & Expense Policy Establishing Procedures & 

Guidelines; Rescinding Resolution 2014-209 
2015-042: Appointment of K Christensen to the Benton County Mosquito Control Board  
2015-043: Appointment of G Dorsett to the Benton County Mosquito Control Board   



 - 5 - 

2015-044: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 
2015-045: Contract w/Moon Security Services, Inc. for Security Monitoring Services   
2015-046: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 
2015-047: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Depts. 504 & 560   
2015-048: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0108-101, Depts. 504 & 560  
2015-049: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 
2015-050: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126   
2015-051: Agreement w/Public Safety Testing for Civil Service Testing   
2015-052: Internal Policies for Non-Exempt Non-Bargaining Employees in Facilities & 

Parks Dept.  
2015-053: Agreement w/American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, 

Representing Courthouse Employees 
2015-054: Agreement w/Teamster’s Local 839, Representing Sheriff’s Office Clerical 
2015-055: Purchase & Payment Authorization of Spreader Controls for Dump Trucks to 

Force America Distributing 
2015-056: Interlocal Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District for Quarry Rock 
2015-057: Purchase of 12 Vehicles from Columbia Ford Nissan 
2015-058: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123 
2015-059: Contract w/Prosser Economic Development Association for Economic 

Development  
2015-060: Contract w/Benton City Economic Development Council for Economic 

Development 
2015-061: 2014 Personal Property Uncollectibles 
2015-062: Final Plat of the Ridge at Reata West Phase 3 – SUB 2014-003 
 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:45 
a.m.   
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



WEH
Text Box
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 106







WEH
Text Box
b. Lease Agreement w/APS Mailing Systems for Mailing Services







cc:  Taxing Districts; Treasurer; Assessor; Public Works; file   
SmithKelty 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF BENTON COUNTY TAX LEVY FOR 2015 

 

WHEREAS, on this 27
th

 day of January, 2015, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, 

pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington, providing for all assessment of taxes in the State 

of Washington, does hereby levy a tax on all taxable property in Benton County, and the taxable 

property within the various districts, as shown by the assessment rolls of said county, said tax 

being for the purpose of defraying the county, road, municipal drainage, hospital districts, fire 

protection districts, and other expenses; and 

 

WHEREAS, the directors, supervisors, and commissioners of various school districts, drainage 

districts, and other districts and municipalities have certified to the county commissioners the 

amounts needed to meet the expenses for 2015-2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary in some districts that a tax be levied to pay interest on bonds and 

create a sinking fund for the purpose of paying indebtedness; NOW THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, all members concurring, and for the purpose of raising revenue for the 

county, road, and other purposes, thereby and hereby is levied on all taxable property in the 

County of Benton, State of Washington, as shown by the assessment roles for the year of 2015, 

taxes sufficient to raise the following amounts: 

 

See attached Exhibit A 

 

BENTON COUNTY ASSESSED VALUATION FOR 2014………$16,379,293,799 

 
 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro Tem  

 

         
Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 

 Clerk of the Board      Washington 

 

 

WEH
Text Box
c. Approval of Benton County Tax Levy for 2015



Office of the Assessor 
Benton County, Washington 

 
 

     

Bill Spencer, Assessor                                             Prosser Office (509) 786-2046 
Patty Yahne, Chief Deputy                             Prosser from Tri Cities (509) 736-3088 
Adam Morasch, Chief Appraiser                       Kennewick Office (509) 735-2394 
                                                                                                                                             Prosser Fax (509) 786-5657 
 

P.O. Box 902, Prosser WA  99350-0902 
Benton County is an equal opportunity employer 

 
 
 
 
 

January 14, 2015 
 
 
 
 

To:       Duane Davidson, Benton County Treasurer 
 

From:       Bill Spencer, Benton County Assessor 
 

Cc:       Benton County Board of County Commissioners 
 

Re:       2015 Tax Year Property Taxes Certification 
 
 

This is to confirm that 2015 tax year property taxes were certified to you  
via Ascend certification process on January 14, 2015. 

 
The total Real and Personal Taxes (excluding omitted property tax and  
late penalty tax for personal property) is: 

 
                                              $191,635,722 
 

The attached worksheet shows a breakdown of the various taxing districts  
within Benton County.  Tax dollars are rounded to the nearest dollar for this 
report. 

 



WEH
Text Box
d. Amending Resolution 2014-113 Regarding 2013-2014 County Budgets



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 01/27/15  
Subject: Canvassing Board 

Appt 
Prepared by:       Marilu Flores  
Reviewed by: L Smith Kelty             

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   XXX 

 
 
Consent Agenda       

     
XX
X  

Public Hearing            
1st Discussion            
2nd Discussion            
Other             

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Elections Dept will be having a Special Election on February 10, 2015 and a Commissioner (typically the 
Chairman) needs to be appointed to serve on the Canvassing Board who will meet to canvass the Special 
Election on February 24, 2015.   
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
A Commissioner needs to be appointed to serve on the Canvassing Board for the Special Election held on 
February 10, 2015. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Appoint Chairman Delvin to the Elections Department Canvassing Board to canvass the Special election 
results on Tuesday, February 24, 2015. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
 na 
 
 
MOTION 
 
 
na - on consent agenda 

WEH
Text Box
e. Canvassing Board Appointment



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CANVASSING BOARD APPOINTMENT 
 

I, Jerome Delvin, Chair of the Benton County Commissioners, hereby designate 
myself to serve on the Benton County Canvassing Board for the Special Election to be 
held on February 10, 2015. I will serve for the timeframe January 20, 2015 through 
February 24, 2015. 

 
DATED this           day of January, 2015. 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Jerome Delvin 
Chair, Board of County Commissioners 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM CURRENT EXPENSE FUND
0000101, NON-DEPT. 115 TO CURRENT EXPENSE FUND 0000101, ANIMAL
CONTROL. 137

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 115 to Dept. 137



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 115 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 137

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
511.600 4931 Fenced Item Contingency $29,931 554.301 2103 Medical Insurance $26,472

554.301 2104 Retirement $3,459

TOTAL $29,931 TOTAL $29,931
Explanation:

Prepared by: P.Schut Date:  15-Jan-2015

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Error was made during the 2015-2016 budgetary process. Not enough funds were allocated to either medical insurance or retirement within the Animal
Control Department. This transfer will be enough to cover both line items for the entire biennium, providing that there are no increases in medical
insurance premiums.

Non-Dept.

Current Expense

115

000101



RESOLUTION 
 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF RESCINDING RESOLUTION 2012-327 AND GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE, TO DENY ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, AS WELL 
AS SETTLE CLAIMS AND LITIGATION MATTERS IN AMOUNTS OF $25,000 OR LESS 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners is vested with the authority to manage the 
County’s funds and prosecute and defend all actions for and against the County pursuant to RCW 
36.32.120; and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County had a Risk Manager who was designated as the County Claims Administrator 
for Benton County and was responsible for the County’s risk management function; and; 
 
WHEREAS, the majority of valid claims against Benton County are for Twenty Five Thousand Dollars 
($25,000) or less; and 
 
WHEREAS, expeditious claims settlement, and when appropriate denial, is advantageous to Benton 
County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Risk Manager had authorization to settle claims and lawsuits in amounts not exceeding 
$25,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Administrator, or his/her designee, has the required qualifications to 
settle claims and lawsuits in amounts not greater than $25,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Administrator, or his/her written designee, has the required qualifications 
to deny any and all claims; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners delegates authority to the Safety 
and Training Coordinator, after consultation with the Litigation Civil Prosecuting Attorney, to pay valid 
administrative claims served on Benton County in amounts of $1,000 or less, and negotiate and enter into 
settlement agreements in litigation matters in amounts of $1,000 or less; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners delegates authority to 
the County Administrator, or his/her designee, to pay valid administrative claims served on Benton 
County in amounts of $25,000 or less, and negotiate and enter into settlement agreements in litigation 
matters in amounts of $25,000 or less; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners delegates authority to 
the County Administrator, or his/her designee, to deny any and all administrative claims served on Benton 
County; and 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Orig: Civil                                                                                                                                                                            R. :Lukson 
 cc: D. Sparks; B. Perry    1 

 

WEH
Text Box
g. Authority for County Administrator to Deny and Settle Claims; Rescinding Res 2012-327



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Administrator, or his/her designee, at his/her discretion, 
may refer any claims or offers of settlement for $25,000 or less to the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners for a decision by that Board and shall always refer claims and settlement matters 
involving amounts of more than $25,000 to the Board of Benton County Commissioners for its action; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that resolution 2012-327 is hereby rescinded by provisions of this 
resolution. 
 
 
 
 
Dated this ___________ day of ________________________, 2015. 
 
 

 ___________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 

 
 

 ___________________________ 
 Member 

 
 

 __________________________ 
 Member 

 
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
 
Attest....................................................... 
                     Clerk of the Board 
 

 Orig: Civil                                                                                                                                                                            R. :Lukson 
 cc: D. Sparks; B. Perry    2 

 



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF PURCHASING A 2015 DODGE CARGO VAN FOR THE CORONER’S 
OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, on April 3, 2014 per Resolution 2014-285 the ER&R Manager, per State Contract 
#03613 – Vehicles, Utility, and Vans, ordered one 2014 Ford Transit Van from Columbia Ford 
Nissan 700 7th Ave. Longview, WA for the Coroner’s Office; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on June 23, 2014, the ER&R Manager requested an order status report from the 
Columbia Ford Nissan Fleet Coordinator who stated the European constructed vehicle had not 
yet been started; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on August 12, 2014 the Columbia Ford Nissan Fleet Coordinator informed the 
ER&R Manager that mid-September was the vehicle’s expected arrival date to their Longview, 
Washington facility; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on October 6, 2014 the Columbia Ford Nissan Fleet Coordinator informed the 
ER&R Manager that the vehicle was in a Maryland rail yard awaiting transport; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on November 13, 2014 the Columbia Ford Nissan Fleet Coordinator informed the 
ER&R Manager that the vehicle remained in the Maryland rail yard awaiting transport; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on December 23, 2014 the Columbia Ford Nissan Contract Administrator 
informed the ER&R Manager that the vehicle would arrive at their Longview, Washington 
facility at the end of January 2015; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on January 7, 2015, 280 days later, the Deputy County Administrator 
recommended the Coroner use a P-Card to purchase a similar vehicle from a local dealership; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, on January 7, 2015 the Coroner purchased a 2015 Dodge Cargo Van in the amount 
of $24,667.89 WSST included, from Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Tri-Cities; NOW 
THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners’ approves the Deputy County 
Administrator’s recommendation to purchase a similar vehicle from a local dealership; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners’ approves the purchase 
of a 2015 Dodge Cargo Van from Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge of Tri-Cities in the amount of 
$24,667.89 WSST included; and, 
 
 

cc:   Auditor, ER&R,Coroner, Commissioners  SmithKelty 

WEH
Text Box
h. Purchase Authorization of 2015 Dodge Cargo Van from Lithia Chrysler Jeep Dodge



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners’ authorizes the ER&R 
Manager to pay from and place the 2015 Dodge Cargo Van in the ER&R Fund. 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2015. 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 

cc:   Auditor, ER&R,Coroner, Commissioners  SmithKelty 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 110.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
518-301 1263 Maintenance Worker $311 518-301 3501 Small Equipment $1,468
518-301 1269 Maintenance Worker $896 518-301 4701 Utilities $14,264
518-301 2102 Social Security $4,572
518-301 2103 Medical Insurance $3,063
518-301 2104 Retirement $6,243
518-301 4198 Road Professional Services $647

TOTAL $15,732 TOTAL $15,732
Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  09-Jan-2015

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

2013-2014 Budget. Transfer needed to pay year end invoices.  

Facilities

Current Expense

110

0000-101



WEH
Text Box
j. Contract w/Apollo Sheet Metal, Inc. for HVAC Maintenance Services







WEH
Text Box
k. Contract w/Dept of Social & Health Services, Division of Behavioral Health & Recovery







WEH
Text Box
l. Contract w/City of Kennewick for Crisis Intervention Training







WEH
Text Box
m. Contract w/Domestic Violence Services for Ten-Year Homeless Housing Plan







03/12/12   G:\_In Work\2015-2016\SolarWinds\SolarWinds_AGENDA.docx 

 

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED    

        

Meeting Date: January 27, 2015 Execute Contract   Consent Agenda x  

Subject: Authorize purchase of 

Solarwinds Orion 

Software from Cerium 

Networks 

Pass Resolution x  Public Hearing   

 Pass Ordinance   1st Discussion   

 Pass Motion   2nd Discussion   

Prepared By: Teri Holmes Other   Other   

Reviewed By: Loretta Smith Kelty       

        

 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Now that the dust is settling on the Benton County Network Voice and Data Infrastructure upgrade project. Information 
Technology would like to purchase software tools to assist in proactively monitoring the health of our network.   

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
SolarWinds Orion Network Performance Monitor (NPM) will enable us to quickly detect, diagnose and resolve network 
performance issues and outages.  Thereby reducing downtime and outages and generally providing a better overall 
networking experience.   
 
SolarWinds Orion NetFlow Traffic Analyzer Module when added to the Network Performance Monitor delivers a 
comprehensive view of network traffic.  Enabling us to capture data from continuous streams of network traffic and convert 
those numbers into charts and tables that quantify exactly how our network is being used, by whom and for what purpose.   
 
SolarWinds Orion Network Configuration Manager (NCM) is change management software and when added to the other two 
modules assists in automating backup of network device (routers, switches, firewalls, access points, etc) configurations on a 
regular basis.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
 1ST    Pass resolution.  

  
 2nd 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 
Project included in 2015-2016 Information Technology budget 
 

WEH
Text Box
n. Purchase Authorization of Solarwinds Orion Monitor & Software from Cerium Networks



Orig: Information Technology 
cc: Auditor 

Prepared by: T. Holmes 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF SOLARWINDS ORION 

NETWORK PERFORMANCE MONITOR, NETFLOW TRAFFIC ANALYZER AND NETWORK 
CONFIGURATION MANAGER SOFTWARE FROM CERIUM NETWORKS, SPOKANE, WA. 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677 of Benton County’s Procurement, Leasing, and Contract 

Policy, Section 2.2.2 states that purchasing or leases between $5,000 and $24,999 shall 

secure written quotes from at least three (3) different vendors on the vendor list; and 

 

WHEREAS, three (3) responses to the Request for Quotes were received with quotes 

summarized as follows (amounts shown do not include applicable taxes):  

 

Cerium Networks Spokane, WA $23,448.61 

Loop 1 Austin, TX $26,518.50 

SolarWinds Dallas, TX $29,465.00 

 

WHEREAS, Information Technology has reviewed the quotes for completeness and 

recommends purchasing Solarwinds Orion Network Performance Monitor, Orion NetFlow 

Traffic Analyzer and Orion Network Configuration Manager from Cerium Networks, as the 

most advantageous to the county with price and other factors considered;  NOW, 

THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County 

Washington authorizes the purchase of SolarWinds Orion Network Performance Monitor, 

Orion NetFlow Traffic Analyzer and Orion Network Configuration Manager Software from 

Cerium Networks, Spokane, WA  in an amount not to exceed $23,448.61 plus WSST.  

 

 
Dated this  day of  ,   

  
  

 Chairman of the Board 
  
  

 Member 
  
  

 Member 
 

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 

Attest:   of Benton County, Washington 

 Clerk of the Board  

 



  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

Currently Benton County has Autodesk LT, Civil 3D, Map 3D, and Infrastructure Design Suite 

Premium software installations in various departments.  In the 2013-2014 biennium a two year 

subscription renewal was executed with Department of Enterprise Services.  It is time to renew 

the software subscription.  

 

SUMMARY  

Public Works has requested that two copies of the Autodesk Infrastructure Design Suite be 

converted to network copies.  This will enable low volume users to share licenses and have 

access to AutoCAD software without the cost of new licenses.  Public Works has also requested 

that the total Autodesk Infrastructure Design Suite Licenses be reduced by one to a total of five.   

RECOMMENDATION  

Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners approve the purchase of a two year 

Autodesk software subscription renewal and Infrastructure Design Suite license updates for Public 

Works in an amount not to exceed $25,115.17 excluding Washington State sales tax. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  

   Minor, renewal included in the 2015-2016 charge back assessments, Public Works will be invoiced for 

costs outside of original renewal.  

  
MOTION  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: January 27, 2015 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda X   

Subject: Authorize 2 year Autodesk 

subscription renewal Pass Resolution  X   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance     1st Discussion    

By: Teri L. Holmes Pass Motion     2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: Loretta SmithKelty Other     Other      

                    

WEH
Text Box
o. Purchase Authorization of Two Yr Software Subscription Renewal w/DLS Solutions



Orig: Information Technology 
cc: Auditor. 

Prepared by: T Holmes 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO YEAR AUTODESK 

SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL FOR AUTOCAD LT, AUTOCAD CIVIL 3D, 
AUTOCAD MAP 3D, DESIGN SUITE PREMIUM AND PARTIAL CONVERSION OF 
DESIGN SUITE PREMIUM TO NETWORK LICENSE EDITION UTILIZING WASHINGTON 

STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENTERPRISE SERVICES CONTRACT #T98-TSD-309 FROM 
DLT SOLUTIONS, LLC., HERNDON, VA. 
 

WHEREAS, Benton County currently uses Autodesk AutoCAD LT, Civil 3D, Map 3D, and 

Design Suite Premium as a software standard for Computer-Aided Design functions; and 

 

WHEREAS, DLT Solutions, LLC is the authorized reseller listed by Washington State 

Department of Enterprise Services under contract #T98-TSD-309; and 

 

WHEREAS, Public Works has requested two current Autodesk Infrastructure Design Suite 

Licenses be converted to Network Editions and one Autodesk Infrastructure Design Suite 

License be dropped; and  

 

WHEREAS, in the best interest of Benton County, Information Technology recommends the 

Autodesk software be kept up to date and current; and 

 

WHEREAS, a quote was solicited and received from DLT Solutions, LLC., Herndon, VA for 

Autodesk subscription renewals and additional network licenses in the amount of 

$25,115.17 excluding Washington State Sales Tax; NOW THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with 

Information Technology’s recommendation and approves the purchase of a two year 

Autodesk software subscription renewal and the partial conversion of Autodesk 

Infrastructure Design Suite Licenses as requested by Public Works in the amount of 

$25,115.17 excluding Washington State Sales Tax. 

 
Dated this  day of  ,   

  
  

 Chairman of the Board 
  
  

 Member 
  
  

 Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 

Attest:   of Benton County, Washington 

 Clerk of the Board  

 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
JUVENILE OPERATIONS FUND NUMBER 0115101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER
171

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
527.100 4103 Professional Services $7,692 594.280 5132 800 MHZ System Construction $7,692

TOTAL $7,692 TOTAL $7,692
Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  16-Jan-2015

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Error was made during the budgetary process when properly allocating the new BCES costs. No funds were accounted for costs for Secom. This transfer
amount is enough to cover the costs for both 2015-2016 and no additional funds will need to be transferred. 

Juvenile 

Juvenile Operations

171

0115101



WEH
Text Box
q. Contract w/City of Kennewick for Graffiti Abatement Program







WEH
Text Box
r. Contract w/City of Benton City for Graffiti Abatement Program







WEH
Text Box
s. Amended Contract w/State of WA, Department of Social & Health Services for Selective Aggressive Probation







WEH
Text Box
t. Awarding Dyron Murphy Architects Contract for Admin Building Assessments







WEH
Text Box
u. Awarding Western States CAT Contract for Engine & Generator Maintenance & Repair







WEH
Text Box
v. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 136







WEH
Text Box
w. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/B Riley





WEH
Text Box
x. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/E Riley





WEH
Text Box
y. Amended District Court Public Defense Contract w/B Pang





WEH
Text Box
z. Amended District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Mendoza





WEH
Text Box
aa. District Court Public Defense Services Agreement w/D McKinley





WEH
Text Box
bb. District Court Public Defense Agreement w/L Mapes





WEH
Text Box
cc. District Court Public Defense Mentoring & Supervision Contract w/M Trombley





WEH
Text Box
dd. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/J Porteous







WEH
Text Box
ee. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/J Griffin







WEH
Text Box
ff. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/M Torres







WEH
Text Box
gg. Public Defense Investigative Services Contract w/M Almquist







WEH
Text Box
hh. Superior Court Public Defense Services Contract w/P McBurney





WEH
Text Box
ii. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Services Contract w/M Alexander





WEH
Text Box
jj. Amended Superior Court Public Defense Services Contract w/S Ajax





WEH
Text Box
kk. Amended Juvenile Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Trombley





WEH
Text Box
ll. Terminating District Court Public Defense Contract w/J Briggs





WEH
Text Box
mm Public Defense Contract w/D Stovern for Failure to Pay Legal Financial Obligation Matters





WEH
Text Box
nn. Public Defense Contract w/S Henwood for Failure to Pay Legal Financial Obligation Matters





Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND NUMBER 0110102, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
oo. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0110-102, Department 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
594.760 6201 Capital - Bldg. $20,000 576.810 4102 Contract Services $20,000

TOTAL $20,000 TOTAL $20,000
Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  09-Jan-2015

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to pay for new roof at Meacham Hall - Horn Rapids Park.  2013-2014 Budget

Park Dev.

Park Development

000

0110102



WEH
Text Box
pp. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000







WEH
Text Box
qq. Payment Authorization to B Strote Counseling & EAP for Training Services





Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
PROTECTIVE INSPECTION SERVICE FUND NUMBER 0149101, DEPARTMENT
NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
rr. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0149-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:
TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)
524.200 5115  Emergency Management $1,500 594.280 5119 EDC-800 MHZ User Fees $2,036
524.200 3111 Publication $536 594.280 5132 801 MHZ System Construction $1,282
524.200 4301 Travel $428
524.200 4901 Association Dues $428
524.200 4905 Training $426

TOTAL $3,318 TOTAL $3,318
Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  16-Jan-2015

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

During the 2015-2016 budgetary process it was not conveyed to the department that line items 5119 and 5132 were to be used for SECOM user
fees/upgrade costs. This transfer is to cover necessary SECOM costs for the next biennium and no further funds will be needed.

Building

Protective Inspection Service

000

0149101



WEH
Text Box
ss. Bid Authorization for Purchase of Surfacing Materials-Hot Mix Asphalt





WEH
Text Box
tt. Digital Submittal Certification of 2015 Road Levy Certification & Estimated Revenue



WEH
Text Box
uu. Purchase Authorization from Kuker-Ranken, Inc of Leica Total Station – Survey Equipment







WEH
Text Box
vv. Salary Request Statement



RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF WEAPONS, AIR TASERS & 
ELECTRONIC INCAPACITATION DEVICES FROM PROFORCE MARKETING, INC. DBA/ 
PROFORCE LAW ENFORCEMENT UTILIZING WASHINGTON STATE CONTRACT NO. 
02309 FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE PATROL AND CORRECTIONS 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-347 Benton County Board of Commissioners approved the 
purchase of weapons, air tasers & electronic incapacitation devices from ProForce Markeing, 
Inc. dba ProForce Law Enforcement utilizing Washington State Contract No. 02309 with a total 
amount not to exceed $30,000 including WSST, for the period of April 2, 2013 through February 
1, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, ProForce Law Enforcement informed the Benton County Sheriff’s Office that rates 
increased and were amended as of January 8, 2015, as per State Contract 02309 allows; and    
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office wishes to continue to purchase weapons, air 
tasers & electronic incapacitation devices from ProForce Law Enforcement utilizing Washington 
State Contract No. 02309 and reflect the new rates or hereafter amended rates within State 
Contract 02309 for a term commencing January 8, 2015 and expiring June 2, 2015; NOW, 
THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, hereby concurs with the recommendation and approves the purchase of weapons, 
air tasers & electronic incapacitation devices for ProForce Law Enforcement utilizing 
Washington State Contract No. 02309 with a total amount not to exceed $30,000 including 
WSST, for the period of January 8, 2015 through June 2, 2015.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board is hereby authorized to sign the attached Purchase 
Order Agreement. 
 
 
 
Dated this  ________ day of _____________, 2015. 

 
 
 

  ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________                
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board 

 

Orig: BCSO 
Cc: Auditors, ProForce Law Enforcement  L. Small  

WEH
Text Box
ww. Purchase Authorization from ProForce Law Enforcement for Weapons & Tasers





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: January 27, 2015    
Subject: Agreement 

w/LexisNexis  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Under Federal Law, Benton County is required to provide an adequate law library or adequate assistance 
from persons trained in the law for inmates within the jail.  
 
The Benton County Sheriff’s Office had a service contract with LexisNexis for an External Hard Drive (EHD) 
system that met the requirements to provide case law and revised codes for Washington State to inmates 
within the Benton County Jail for a service contract amount of $625.00 plus WSST per month, with a 
termination date of December 31, 2014.  
 
Said parties have been negotiating a new contract to include on-line kiosk system utilizing the kiosk systems 
provided by Telmate and was expected to be executed prior to termination of said contract. To date, the 
language for on-line interface services has not been fully agreed upon.  
 
Both parties wish to enter into a three (3) month service contract to continue to provide the External Hard 
Drive (EHD) services to inmates within the Benton County Jail for a contract amount of $625.00 plus WSST 
per month, with a termination date of March 31, 2015 to allow additional time to negotiate the on-line 
interface through Telmate’s kiosk system.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and service contract between Benton County and LexisNexis for a contract 
amount of $625.00 plus WSST, with a term beginning January 1, 2015 and terminating March 31, 2015.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Service rates were approved in the 2015/2016 budget process to be paid out of Dept 120.  
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
xx. Contract w/ LexisNexis for Law Library



RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF A SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND LEXISNEXIS 
FOR AN EXTERNAL HARD DRIVE PRISON SOLUTIONS FOR CASE LAW AND REVISED 
CODES OF WASHINGTON STATE TO BE PROVIDED TO INMATES WITHIN THE BENTON 
COUNTY JAIL, KENNEWICK, WA   
 
WHEREAS, under Federal Law, Benton County is required to provide an adequate law library or 
adequate assistance from persons trained in the law for inmates within the jail; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office had a service contract with LexisNexis for an 
External Hard Drive (EHD) system that met the requirements to provide case law and revised 
codes for Washington State to inmates within the Benton County Jail for a service contract amount 
of $625.00 plus WSST per month for a total commitment of $7,500.00 plus WSST per year, with a 
termination date of December 31, 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, said parties have been negotiating a new contract to include on-line kiosk system  
utilizing the kiosk systems provided by Telmate and was expected to be executed prior to 
termination of said contract; and  
 
WHEREAS, to date, the language for online law library services has not been fully agreed upon; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, both parties wish to enter into another service contract to provide the External Hard 
Drive (EHD) to offer case law and revised codes for Washington State to inmates within the Benton 
County Jail for a service contract amount of $625.00 plus WSST per month, with a termination date 
of March 31, 2015 to allow additional time to negotiate the on-line interface through Telmate’s 
kiosk system; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby concurs with the recommendation to enter into a service contract with LexisNexis, a division 
of Reed Elsevier, Inc. and Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. Albany, NY, for the External Hard 
Drive (EHD) system that meets the requirements to provide case law and revised codes for 
Washington State to inmate within the Benton County Jail for a service contract amount of $625.00 
plus WSST per month; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the 
contract and addendum between Benton County and LexisNexis, a division of Reed Elsevier, Inc. 
and Matthew Bender & Company, Inc. attached hereto; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached contract shall be effective January 1, 2015 and shall 
terminate March 31, 2015.   
 
 
 
 
 

Orig: BCSO 
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; LexisNexis  L. Small 
 



 
Dated this ________ day of ________________, 2015. 

                       
 
 
 

             ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
 

                                   ___________________________                
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________  
 Member 

  
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                     Clerk of the Board 

Orig: BCSO 
cc: Auditor; S. Araiza; LexisNexis  L. Small 
 



AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Jan. 27, 2015        
Subject: License/Hold Harmless 

Agreement w/ City of 
Kennewick 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _X   _ 
Pass Resolution  _____ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion _____ 
Other  ____ 

Consent Agenda   _X   _ 
Public Hearing    _____ 
1st Discussion    _____ 
2nd Discussion    _____ 
Other    _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Per Resolution 2013-875 dated December 3, 2013 the City of Kennewick and the Benton County by and 
for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office entered into a License and Hold Harmless Agreement for the 
purpose of establishing the terms and conditions of use for the Kennewick Firearms Range Facility, with 
an expiration date of December 31, 2014.  

Both parties would like to enter into another License and Hold Harmless Agreement for calendar years 
2015 & 2016. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution and License and Hold Harmless Agreement between the City of 
Kennewick and Benton County by and for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

No Fiscal Impact – There are no fees associated with this agreement. 

MOTION 

Consent Agenda 

WEH
Text Box
yy. Agreement w/ City of Kennewick for Use of Kennewick Firearms Range Facility



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Dated this _________ day of ____________________, 2015  
 
 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

                
Member 

 
Attest:_____________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County  
Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

                        

IN THE MATTER OF A LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF KENNEWICK AND BENTON COUNTY BY AND FOR 
THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR THE PURPOSE OF USE FOR 
THE KENNEWICK FIREARMS RANGE FACILITY 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-875 dated December 3, 2013 the City of Kennewick and 
the Benton County by and for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office entered into a License and 
Hold Harmless Agreement for the purpose of establishing the terms and conditions of use for 
the Kennewick Firearms Range Facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, the use of this facility is for organized training events and routine target 
practice conducted by Benton County Sheriff’s Office and its officers; and  
 
WHEREAS, both parties would like to enter into another License and Hold Harmless 
Agreement for calendar years 2015 & 2016; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorize the 
Chairman of the Board to sign the attached License and Hold Harmless Agreement between 
the City of Kennewick and Benton County; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of this agreement shall commence January 1, 
2015 and shall terminate on December 31, 2016.  
 
 
 

Orig: BCSO  
Cc: Auditor, S. Araiza, City of Kennewick  L. Small 



 
LICENSE/HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 

 
 

This License and Hold Harmless Agreement (“AGREEMENT”) is hereby entered into between 
the City of Kennewick (“CITY”), a municipal corporation and Benton County by and for the 
Benton County Sheriff’s Office (“LICENSEE”), for purposes of establishing the terms and 
conditions of use for the Kennewick Firearms Range facility for organized training events and 
routine target practice conducted by Benton County Sheriff’s Office and its officers.  
 

I.   RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY has authorized the use of the Kennewick Firearms Range facility for 
LICENSEE; and  
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of use of the Kennewick Firearms Range facility, the CITY has 
required a License and Hold Harmless Agreement to be executed by both parties; NOW, 
THEREFORE  
 
THE PARTIES AGREE HERETO AS FOLLOWS: 

II.   AGREEMENT 
 
1. License.  

 
It is agreed and understood that LICENSEE shall have use of the Kennewick Firearms 
Range for firearms training and routine target practice and agrees to abide by the CITY’s 
range rules. LICENSEE agrees that officers will use protective equipment whenever 
shooting, including proper eyewear, hearing protection, and bulletproof vest. LICENSEE 
further agrees that all organized training events, as well as routine target practice 
involving five or more law enforcement officers, shall be supervised by a certified 
firearms instructor from that law enforcement agency.  

 
2.  Hold Harmless.  
 

(a)  It is agreed and understood that LICENSEE shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the CITY, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and 
against all claims, suits, actions or liabilities, for injury or death of any person, or 
for loss or damage to property which arises out of the LICENSEES’ use of the 
Firearms Range or from any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by 
LICENSEE, in or about the Firearms Range. The LICENSEE’s indemnity 
obligation herein does not extend to claims, suits, actions, or liabilities associated 
with negligence or other wrongful conduct by the CITY or its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers. 

 
(b)  It is agreed and understood that the CITY shall defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless the LICENSEE, its employees, agents, or affiliates from and against all 

LICENSE/HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT – Page 1 



AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: January 27, 2015  
Subject: Resolution Amendment 

for Purchase of Ammo 
from San Diego Police 
Equip. Co.  

Prepared by: L. Small      
Reviewed by:  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract ___ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion _____ 
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda            __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____ 
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Per Resolution 2013-361, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved the 
purchase of Ammunition from San Diego Police Equipment Company, Inc. utilizing Washington State 
Contract No. 03210 with a total amount not to exceed $80,000 including WSST, for the period of 
May 7, 2013 through January 31, 2015.  

This Resolution amendment is necessary to increase the not to exceed amount to $185,000 including 
WSST, as the pricing on ammunition will be increasing on February 1, 2015 and the County Sheriff’s Office, 
along with the Emergency Response Team, would like to take advantage of the current rates and purchase 
their ammunition that was approved in the 2015/2016 budget prior to the expected increase on February 1, 
2015. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution increasing the amount not to exceed from $80,000 to 185,000 in order to 
purchase the 2015/2016 ammunition that has been approved through the biennial budget.  The $185,000 
will cover the cost for all ammunition that has been purchased and will be purchased from May 7, 2013 
through the Washington State Contract term date of January 31, 2017.    

FISCAL IMPACT 

These expenditures were approved in the 2013/14 and the 2015/16 biennial budget process for patrol, 
corrections, and emergency response team.  

MOTION 

Consent Agenda 

WEH
Text Box
zz. Ammunition Purchase Authorization from San Diego Police Equipment Company



RESOLUTION
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING RESOLUTION 2013-361 AUTHORIZING THE
PURCHASE OF AMMUNITION FROM SAN DIEGO POLICE EQUIPMENT COMPANY,
INC. OFF WASHINGTON STATE CONTRACT NO. 03210 FOR THE BENTON COUNTY
SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE TEAM 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2013-361 the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved 
the purchase of Ammunition from San Diego Police Equipment Company, Inc. off Washington 
State Contract No. 03210 with a total amount not to exceed $80,000 including WSST, for the 
period of May 7, 2013 through January 31, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, this Resolution Amendment is necessary to increase the not to exceed amount as the 
pricing on ammunition will be increasing as of February 1, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, the Benton County Captain and Jail Commander recommend purchasing the 
estimated amount of ammunition needed for Patrol, Corrections, and the Emergency Response 
Team for 2015-2016 that was approved their biennial budget in order to take advantage of the 
current price rates prior to February 1, 2015 rate increase; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby concurs with the recommendation and hereby approves the purchase of Ammunition from 
San Diego Police Equipment Company, Inc. utilizing Washington State Contract No. 03210 for a 
total amount not to exceed $185,000 including WSST for the period of May 7, 2013 through 
January 31, 2017; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the State Contract price rates are subject to change and purchase 
price shall be in accordance with Washington State price rate sheet at the time of order and written 
quote; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Resolution 2013-361 is hereby amended. 

Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________ , 2015. 

______ ___
Chairman of the Board 

______ ___
Member 

______ ___
Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington. 

Attest....................................................... 
Clerk of the Board 

Orig: Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, Purchase file; San Diego Police Equip. 

Prepared by: L. Small 



     
  

                                          
 
 
January 27, 2015 
 
 
Sheriff Jim Raymond 
County of Franklin Sheriff’s Office  
1016 N. 4th 
Pasco, WA 99301 

Chief Ken Hohenberg 
Kennewick Police Department  
211 W. 6th Ave. 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

Chief Chris Skinner 
Richland Police Department  
871 George Washington Way 
Richland, WA 99352 

   
Chief Robert Metzger 
Pasco Police Department  
525 N. Third Ave.  
Pasco, WA 99301 

Chief Brian McElroy  
West Richland Police Department 
3801 West Van Giesen 
West Richland, WA 99353 

Chief David Giles 
Prosser Police Department  
601 7th Street  
Prosser, WA 99350 

   
Chief Chris Turner  
Connell Police Department  
104 East Adams Street  
Connell, WA 99326 

  

 
RE: Notice of Withdrawal from Interlocal Agreement between Benton County, Franklin County, 
and the Cities of Kennewick, Richland, Pasco, Prosser, West Richland, and Connell regarding the 
Annual Software License Update for the Cellebrite USA, Inc. UFED Physical Device  – Resolution 
2014-253 
 
Dear Participating Parties:  
 
The purpose of this letter is to advise you that Benton County is exercising its right to withdraw 
from the above cited Interlocal Agreement per Section 6, Withdrawal.  
 
Section 6.1. states: Any Participating Agency to this Agreement may withdraw by serving a notice 
of withdrawal upon all other Participating Agencies to the Agreement.  This notice shall be given 
by April 1st of any year to be effective September 1st that same year.  Such withdrawal will 
terminate usage of the device for the withdrawing Participating Agency.  
 
Section 6.2. states: In the event a Participating Agency withdraws from this Agreement, the 
Jurisdiction Allocation Formula set forth in Section 4, may be amended pursuant to Section 11.  
 
 
 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

1 
 

WEH
Text Box
aaa Notice of Withdrawal from Interlocal Agreement Regarding Cellebrite USA Software



 
 
Please be advised that said withdrawal will be effective September 1, 2015.   
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
Jerome Delvin, Chairman 
Benton County Commissioner 
 
Cc: Steven Keane, Benton County Sheriff 
       Steve Young, Kennewick City Mayor 
       Cindy Johnon, Richland City Manager 
       Dave Zabell, Pasco City Manager 
       Paul Warden, Prosser City Mayor 
       Brent Gerry, West Richland City Mayor   
       Bruce Blackwell, Connell City Mayor  
       Rick Miller, Franklin County Commissioner  
        

2 
 



WEH
Text Box
bbb Superior Court Interpreter Services Agreement w/A Armijo







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Jan. 27, 2015        
Subject: Grant Agreement with 

Benton Co. Emergency 
Management  

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _X   _ 
Pass Resolution  _X___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           __   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
The Benton County Emergency Management has an executed Grant Agreement with Washington State Military 
Department and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security for Federal Grant Funding per Agreement Number 
E14-175 in the amount of $69,368.  The two parties recently executed an Amendment to said Agreement, 
allocating $20,000 towards an intelligence and information sharing software to benefit four (4) law enforcement 
agencies in the Tri-Cities region including Benton County, Richland, Kennewick, and Pasco.  
 
The Crime Analysts at the above mentioned agencies work together on multiple regional projects, as well as, 
share information on day-to-day criminal activity.  The funding shall cover four (4) software licenses for 3 years, 
which includes training and product support.  
 
Benton County has assumed the responsibility for procuring the equipment/software in accordance with Exhibit A 
of the attached Agreement and the County shall be reimbursed by Benton County Emergency Management in an 
amount not to exceed $20,000.   
 
Benton County has solicited three companies that provide social media intelligence monitoring software and the 
lowest bidder came in at $20,000 including sales tax for a 36 month subscription.    
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Patrol Captain and Crime Analyst recommend approving the attached Grant Agreement between Benton 
County and Benton County Emergency Management utilizing $20,000 of Federal Grant Funds towards an 
intelligence and information sharing software to benefit four (4) law enforcement agencies including Benton  
County, Richland, Kennewick, and Pasco.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Benton County is required to purchase the equipment/software upfront and invoice Benton County Emergency 
Management within 30 days of the purchase for reimbursement not to exceed $20,000.  Said expense was 
included in the 2015/2016 budget process as both an expenditure and revenue.  
 
MOTION 
 
Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman 
to sign the Grant Agreement between Benton County Emergency Management and Benton County for the 
procurement of equipment/software accordance with Exhibit A in the attached Agreement; and 
 
In consideration of the County’s purchase of the equipment/software provided in Exhibit A, Benton County 
Emergency Management shall reimburse the County in an amount not to exceed $20,000 including sales tax.   

WEH
Text Box
Grant Agreement w/Benton County Emergency Management ~ T Antonson



  
RESOLUTION 

  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD TO SIGN THE GRANT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AND BENTON COUNTY FOR 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDING FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE FOR A LOCATION 
BASED SOCIAL INTELLIGENCE PLATFORM FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT AND PUBLIC SAFETY IN THE 
TRI-CITIES REGION 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Emergency Management has an executed Grant Agreement with 
Washington State Military Department and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security for Federal Grant 
Funding per Agreement Number E14-175 in the amount of $69,368; and  
 
WHEREAS, said parties executed an Grant Agreement Amendment A, to allocate $20,000 towards an 
intelligence and information sharing software to benefit four (4) law enforcement agencies in the Tri-Cities 
region including Benton County, Richland, Kennewick, and Pasco; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Crime Analysts at the agencies mentioned above work together on multiple regional projects 
as well as sharing information on day-to-day criminal activity.  The funding shall cover four (4) licenses for 3 
years (including training and product support); and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County has been given the responsibility for procuring the equipment/software in 
accordance with Exhibit A of the attached Agreement and the County shall be reimbursed by Benton County 
Emergency Management in an amount not to exceed $20,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Captain and Crime Analyst believes this type of intelligence and 
information equipment/software will provide the tools needed to help quickly and effectively  prevent, identify, 
respond to & investigate crimes, threats and emergencies and recommends approving the Grant Agreement 
between Benton County Emergency Management and Benton County; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, the Board 
hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the Grant Agreement between Benton County Emergency 
Management and Benton County for the procurement of equipment/software accordance with Exhibit A in the 
attached Agreement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, in consideration of the County’s purchase of the equipment/software provided 
in Exhibit A, Benton County Emergency Management shall reimburse the County in an amount not to exceed 
$20,000; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the attached Agreement shall begin immediately upon execution by 
both Parties and shall terminate August 31, 2015.  
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________, 2015. 
     
 
 ___________________________              
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 ___________________________               
 Member 
 
 
 ___________________________                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 
                 Clerk of the Board  
Orig:  Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, PA, BCEM 

Prepared by: L. Small 





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Jan. 27, 2015        
Subject: Authorization of 

Software Purchase 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: IT Department  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _X   _ 
Pass Resolution  _X___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           __   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            __X__ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
The Tri-Cities local Crime Analysts work together on multiple regional projects, as well as, share information on 
day-to-day criminal activity.  They researched a social media software to help quickly and effectively prevent, 
identify, respond and investigate crimes, threats and emergencies within our community. 
 
The Benton County Emergency Management has an executed Grant Agreement with Washington State Military 
Department and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security for Federal Grant Funding per Agreement Number 
E14-175 in the amount of $69,368.  The two parties recently executed an Amendment to said Grant Agreement, 
allocating $20,000 towards an intelligence and information sharing software to benefit four (4) law enforcement 
agencies in the Tri-Cities region including Benton County, Richland, Kennewick, and Pasco.  
 
Benton County has assumed the responsibility for procuring the equipment/software and solicited the following 
companies:  
 
• SnapTrends, Austin TX - $20,000 including tax for 36 month subscription  
• Geofeedia, Inc., Chicago, IL - $30,000 plus tax for 24 month subscription 
• Echosec Systems LTD – Victoria, BC - $50,000 plus data cost for 1 year subscription 
 
The proposal on Echosec attached hereto is not completely disclosed as it was marked confidential.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Benton County Crime Analyst, along with the other participating agencies Analysts, reviewed and participated 
in a demonstration of the equipment/software from all three (3) vendors and recommends awarding the purchase 
of the equipment/software to SnapTrends as the lowest responsible bidder in the amount of $20,000 including 
WSST. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
These expenditures were put in the 2015/2016 for consideration under both expenditures and revenue.  Benton 
County Emergency Management has agreed to reimburse Benton County the $20,000 for the 36 month 
subscription.  
 
MOTION 
 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby moves to approve the purchase 
of equipment/software for a location based social intelligence platform for law enforcement and public safety from 
SnapTrends, Austin TX in the amount of $20,000 including sales tax to benefit four (4) law enforcement agencies 
in the Tri-Cities region, including Benton County, Richland, Kennewick, and Pasco with said amount to be 
reimbursed by Benton County Emergency Management. 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
Authorization to Purchase Equipment/Software from Snaptrends ~ T Antonson



 RESOLUTION 
  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT/SOFTWARE 
FROM SNAPTRENDS FOR A LOCATION-BASED SOCIAL INTELLIGENCE PLATFORM 
FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT AND PUBLIC SAFETY IN THE TRI-CITIES REGION 
 
WHEREAS, the Tri-Cities local Crime Analysts requested a social media software to quickly and 
effectively prevent, identify, respond and investigate crimes, threats and emergencies within our 
community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Emergency Management has an executed Grant Agreement with 
Washington State Military Department and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security for Federal 
Grant Funding per Agreement Number E14-175 in the amount of $69,368; and  
 
WHEREAS, said parties executed an Grant Agreement Amendment A, to allocate $20,000 towards 
an intelligence and information sharing software to benefit four (4) law enforcement agencies in the 
Tri-Cities region including Benton County, Richland, Kennewick, and Pasco; and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County assumed the responsibility for procuring the equipment/software and 
solicited the following companies:  
 

• SnapTrends, Austin TX - $20,000 including tax for 36 month subscription  
• Geofeedia, Inc., Chicago, IL - $30,000 plus tax for 24 month subscription 
• Echosec Systems LTD – Victoria, BC - $50,000 plus data cost for 1 year subscription 

 
; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Crime Analyst, along with the other participating agencies Analysts, 
reviewed and participated in a demonstration of the equipment/software from all three (3) vendors 
and recommends awarding the purchase of the equipment/software to SnapTrends as the lowest 
responsible bidder; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby concurs with the recommendation and hereby approves the purchase of 
equipment/software for a location based social intelligence platform for law enforcement and public 
safety from SnapTrends, Austin TX in the amount of $20,000 including sales tax to benefit four (4) 
law enforcement agencies in the Tri-Cities region, including Benton County, Richland, Kennewick, 
and Pasco; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County Emergency Management has agreed to reimburse Benton County for 
the cost for said equipment/software for an amount not to exceed $20,000 per the Grant Agreement 
between Benton County Emergency Management and Benton County.     
 
Dated this  __________________ day of ___________________ , 2015. 
                                   ______ ___                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
 
 
                                   ______ ___                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 
               Clerk of the Board  
Orig:  Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, Purchase file; BCEM; SnapTrends;   

Prepared by: L. Small 



WEH
Text Box
Request to Release Benton County 2060 Affordable Housing Funds ~ L Robb



AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING DATE:  January 27, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Shoreline Master 

Program (SMP) Meeting 

MEMO DATE: January 16, 2015 

Prepared By: Mike Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 
Execute Contract 

Pass Resolution       X 

Pass Ordinance  

Pass Motion             X 

Other   

Consent Agenda  
Public Meeting  X 

Discussion  X 

Other   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Benton County is required by RCW 90.58.080 (2)(a)(v) to review, update, and adopt its 
Shoreline Master Program (SMP) in accordance with the provisions of the Shoreline 
Management Act (SMA) and the SMP Guidelines (WAC 173-26).  The County duly entered 
into a grant contract with the Department of Ecology (ECY) to help fund the update 
program, which allows completion and the update was completed in June 2014.  The County 
adopted the draft SMP on June 3, 2014 and sent it to the Washington State Department of 
Ecology for their review and approval.  The Department of Ecology sent a letter to Benton 
County on January 7, 2015, conditionally approving the SMP.  The approval was subject to 5 
required changes and 6 recommended changes.   
 
STAFF REVIEW AND ANALYSIS   

The County has updated its SMP in accordance with state law and guidelines. The 
Washington State Department of Ecology has reviewed the updated SMP and conditionally 
approved the plan.  The conditional approval had 5 required changes and 6 recommended 
changes.   The Planning Department has reviewed the required and recommended changes 
to determine if the wording would be consistent with the original document.  The Planning 
Department does not see any issues with making the changes to the plan. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

It is the recommendation of the Benton County Planning Staff, that the Board of County 
Commissioners accept the changes proposed by the Washington State Department of Ecology.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  

No fiscal impact is determined at this time, this is a non-project proposal. 
 
MOTION  

The Board accepts Washington State Department of Ecology’s changes, as outlined in 
Attachments B and C to the Ecology’s letter dated January 7, 2015 and authorizes the 
chairman to sign the attached letter. 

WEH
Text Box
Benton County Shoreline Master Plan ~ Planning



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF THE BENTON COUNTY SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAM UPDATE (SMP) 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH WASHINGTON STATE SHORELINE MANAGEMENT ACT (SMA) RCW 
90.58. 
 
WHEREAS, the Shoreline Management Act (RCW 90.58.080) provides a timetable that 
requires the County to amend its master program by December 31, 2013, and an extension 
to June 30, 2014 was granted by the Washington State Department of Ecology and 
approved in the grant agreement G1200022 authorized by the Benton County 
Commissioners in Resolution 2012-101; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County developed a public participation plan that provided widespread 
public notice, a project website, public meetings with a Shoreline Advisory Committee, 
public forums in several venues in the County, a Vision Community Questionnaire, a Public 
Access Focus Group, and public meetings and hearings before the Planning Commission 
and Board of County Commissioners between June of 2012 and June of 2014; and, 
 
WHEREAS, an Environmental Determination was made by Benton County in File No. EA 
2014-15, issued on March 21, 2014; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the 60 day Notice of Proposed Amendment was submitted to Washington State 
Department of Commerce  and acknowledged received on March 21, 2014; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners at the Open Record Hearing reviewed all 
testimony and public hearing exhibits that were entered into evidence; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners approved the  Shoreline Master Program  
for Benton County on June 3, 2014 based on findings recorded in Exhibit CCM 1.1; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County approved Shoreline Master Program was sent to the State of 
Washington Department of Ecology for review and approval; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on January 7, 2015, the Washington Department of Ecology approved the 
Benton County Shoreline Master Program subject to the required changes listed in 
Attachment B and the recommended changes shown in Attachment C to Ecology’s letter; 
and,   
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has reviewed the changes proposed by the 
Washington State Department of Ecology and  finds them to be consistent with the goals 
and policies of the Benton Shoreline Master Program; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS that: 
 



Section 1. The Board of County Commissioners accepts the Washington State Department 
of Ecology’s changes, as outlined in Attachments B and C to Ecology’s letter dated January 
7, 2015. 
 
Section 2. The Board of County Commissioners authorizes the Chairman to sign and send a 
letter to Washington State Department of Ecology accepting Ecology’s changes to the 
Benton County Shoreline Master Program,  
 
Section 3. The Board of County Commissioners directs the Benton County Planning 
Department to make the changes to Benton County Shoreline Master Program as provided 
in Ecology’s Attachments B and C.  
 
Dated this 27th day of January 2015. 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
  

 ___________________________ 
 Member 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Member 
 
  Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 
 Washington. 
Attest       
Clerk of the Board 
 
 MES 





cc:   Auditor, Treasurer, District Court, Commissioners  SmithKelty 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF HIRING A MENTAL HEALTH COURT PROGRAM MANAGER 

POSITION TO BE FUNDED FROM THE 3/10 OF 1% PUBLIC SAFETY TAX FUND 0148101 

 

WHEREAS, on March 25, 2014 Resolution 2014 259 placed on the ballot a proposition for an 

increase in sales and use tax for funding public safety needs in Benton County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on August 5, 2014 the voters approved an increase of 3/10 of 1% in Benton 

County’s sales and use tax to provide funding for public safety needs; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2014 Resolution 2014 677 established the 3/10 of 1% Public 

Safety Tax Fund 0148101; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on November 4, 2014, per Resolution 2014 833, an agreement between Benton 

County and the State of Washington Department of Revenue was approved and collection of the 

3/10 of 1% sales and use tax began on January 1, 2015; and, 

 

WHEREAS, one of the recommended actions by the Law and Justice Council for the use of said 

funds was the creation of a Benton County Mental Health Court; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the District Court Administrator believes a manager will be required to develop 

and assist in implementing a Mental Health Court Program; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the County Administrator recommends this manager position start on or after 

March 1, 2015 under the direction of the District Court Judges; NOW THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners approves the District Court 

Administrator’s recommendation to authorize District Court to hire a Mental Health Court 

Program Manager; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners authorizes the Mental 

Health Court Program Manager position be hired by District Court to start work on or after 

March 1, 2015 and be under the direction of the District Court Judges; and, 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners authorizes the County 

Administrator to go to public hearing to establish an initial budget for the 3/10 of 1% Public 

Safety Tax Fund 0148101 for the Manager position; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of County Commissioners authorizes the Mental 

Health Court Program Manager position be paid from the 3/10 of 1% Public Safety Tax Fund 

0148101; and, 

WEH
Text Box
Public Safety Tax Update – Mental Health Coordinator Position ~ D Sparks & L Smith Kelty



cc:   Auditor, Treasurer, District Court, Commissioners  SmithKelty 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2015. 

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

         
Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 

 Clerk of the Board      Washington 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County’s Personnel Manager is hereby directed to 

bring a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners as to the pay grade and complete job 

description for the Mental Health Court Program Manager. 


	AGENDA
	Regular Board Meeting
	Tuesday, January 13, 2015
	Benton County Planning Annex
	1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser, WA
	Agenda Minutes 011315.pdf
	Approval of Minutes
	Other Business
	Vouchers


	CA - Commissioners f.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Coroner h.pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County


	CA - Facilities i.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Juvenile p.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Park oo.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Protective Insp rr.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Sheriff ww.pdf
	RESOLUTION

	CA - Sheriff xx.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY
	Resolution .pdf
	RESOLUTION


	CA - Sheriff yy.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY
	License and Hold Harmless Agreement with the City of Kennewick Resolution.pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Chairman Pro-Tem

	Member
	Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County



	CA - Sheriff zz.pdf
	Agenda action sheet for Resolution Amendment.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY


	Timed - 1 Sheriff Grant w Emergency Management.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY
	E14-175 Benton County Emergancy Management.pdf
	Washington State Military Department
	HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT AGREEMENT FACE SHEET
	Deanna Davis, (509) 628-8092
	ddavis@bces.wa.gov


	Finance Division, Building #1   TA-20
	Camp Murray, WA  98430-5032
	Finance Division, Building #1   TA-20


	Timed - 2 Sheriff SnapTrends Purchase.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY




